
 
 

CITY OF ALLEGAN 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Monday, August 14, 2023 – 7:00PM                   
City Hall – 231 Trowbridge Street Allegan, MI 49010 

7:00 PM Council Meeting (Action to be taken by Council on the following agenda items) 
Note:  Please be courteous and turn cell phones off during the meeting. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL (Excused Absences if Any) 
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
      4A – Approval of the Regular Council Meeting Agenda for August 14, 2023. 
  
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

  
 5A – Approval of the Regular Meeting Minutes from July 24, 2023, Council Meeting. 
                
6. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS & RECOGNITIONS BY MAYOR OR COUNCIL 

 
7. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCES and SCHEDULING OF PUBLIC HEARINGS   

 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 
 
 8A – Public hearing for the OPRA application for 128 Locust Street and adoption of Resolution 23.25. 
 
9. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
10. WRITTEN PETITIONS & REPORTS FROM SPECIAL COMMITTEES   
 
11. REPORTS FROM BOARDS, COMMISSIONS & CITY OFFICES 
 
 11A. City Boards, Commissions and Area Agencies 
 
  11A.1 – Airport Advisory Board August Meeting – Peter Hanse 
 
  11A.2 – Historic District Commission August Meeting – Mike Zeter 
 
  11A.3 – Downtown Development Authority August Meeting – Teresa Galloway  
                                         

11B. Finance Department  
 

11B.1 – Request to approve Accounts Payable and Payroll. 
    



 

 
 

11C. Public Safety 
 
11D. Water Utilities 

                 
11D.1 – Request to approve a purchase order for System Specialists to provide three diverting and 
isolation valves for the Water Resource Recovery Facility in the amount of $12,566.00. 

 
11D.2 – Request to approve a purchase order for Kennedy Industries to provide replacement parts for 
the JWC Septage Honey Monster in the amount of $14,200.00. 

 
11D.3 – Acceptance of a report regarding payment for emergency work performed by Waste Recovery 
Systems on the Eastern Avenue lift station force main. 

 
11E. Public Works 

 
11F. City Manager & City Clerk 
 

11F.1 – Request to approve updated AT&T cellular lease agreement terms. 
 
11F.2 – Request to approve the construction of six dumpster enclosures in Downtown Allegan. 

  
12. BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 
13. COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY MANAGER, COUNCIL & MAYOR 

 
14. CLOSED SESSION 
 
15. ADJOURNMENT 
 
PLEASE NOTE 
 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION: 
In addition to addressing the Council during public hearings and under “Public Comment,” members of the 
audience may address the Council, on items listed under agenda numbers 11B-11F; please limit your comments 
to three minutes or less per item. Please step up to the Podium and state your name and address. 
 

The proposed process for items listed under agenda numbers 11B-11F above shall be as follows: 
 

1. Announcement of the agenda item by the Mayor. 
2. Verbal report provided by staff. 
3. Mayor asks councilmembers if they have any questions for staff to clarify the staff report. 
4. Mayor opens/closes the floor to receive public comment (if a public hearing is required or if the 

mayor determines public comments is warranted). 
5. Motion is made by a council member and seconded by another council member. 
6. Mayor then calls on councilmembers to discuss the motion if councilmembers wish to discuss. 
7. Mayor calls for a vote on the item after discussion has occurred. 



 

The minutes of this meeting will be available at City Hall, 231 Trowbridge Street Allegan, MI 49010 269.673.5511 
The City of Allegan is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

 
   

1 7/24/2023 

 
 

CITY OF ALLEGAN 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 Monday July 24, 2023, at 7:00 PM 
City Council Chamber – 231 Trowbridge Street 

Allegan, Michigan 
 

 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Galloway called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 

2. Roll Call 
Present: Andrus, Bird, Galloway, Hanse, Morgan, Redding, Zeter 
 
Absent: None. 

 
Also Present: City Manager Joel Dye, Downtown Manager Parker Johnson, and City Clerk 
Michaela Kleehammer.  

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
4. Approval of Agenda 

 
4A – Approval of the Regular Council Meeting Agenda for July 24, 2023. 
 
Motion by Zeter with support from Andrus to approve the Regular Council Meeting Agenda 
for July 24, 2023, as amended. Motion passed 7-0. 

 
5. Approval of Minutes 

 
5A – Approval of the Study Session Minutes from July 10, 2023, Council Meeting. 
 
Motion by Zeter with support from Bird to approve the study session minutes from July 
10,2023. Motion passed 6-0 (Hanse abstaining) 
 
5B – Approval of the Regular Meeting Minutes from July 10, 2023, Council Meeting. 
 
Motion by Bird with support from Andrus to approve the regular meeting minutes from July 
10, 2023. Motion passed 6-0 (Hanse abstaining).  

 
6. Special Presentations & Recognition by Mayor or Council 

 



 

The minutes of this meeting will be available at City Hall, 231 Trowbridge Street Allegan, MI 49010 269.673.5511 
The City of Allegan is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

 
   

2 7/24/2023 

7. First Reading of Ordinances and Scheduling of Public Hearings 
 

8. Public Hearings and Adoption of Ordinance 
 

9. Public Comment (7:02 – 7:06) 
 

• Ron Jones (217 Lincoln) 
• Mary Jo Berry (533 Maple) 

 
10. Written Petitions & Reports from Special Committees 
 

10A – Request from Wings of Hope. 
 
Motion by Hanse with support from Morgan to approve the request from Wings of Hope. 
Motion passed 7-0. 

 
11. Reports from Boards, Commissions & City Offices 
 

11A. City Boards, Commissions, and Area Agencies 
 
 11A.1 – Downtown Development Authority July Meeting – Teresa Galloway 
 
 11A.2 – Public Spaces Commission July Meeting – Bill Morgan 
 
 11A.3 – Zoning Board of Appeals July 13th Meeting – Joel Dye 
 
11B. Finance Department 
 
 11B.1 – Request to approve Accounts Payable and Payroll. 
 

Motion by Bird with support from Andrus to approve accounts payable and payroll. 
Motion passed 7-0. 

 
11C. Public Safety 
 

11C.1 – Request to declare the emergency siren located at 300 Monroe Street as surplus 
and discuss emergency siren coverage in the City of Allegan. 

 
Motion by Morgan with support from Bird to declare the emergency siren located at 300 
Monroe Street as surplus. Motion passed 7-0. 

 
11D. Water Utilities 

 
11E. Public Works  
 

11E.1 – Request to authorize a transfer of FY2019 airport funds to the Coleman A. 
Young Airport in Detroit, Michigan. 

  



 

The minutes of this meeting will be available at City Hall, 231 Trowbridge Street Allegan, MI 49010 269.673.5511 
The City of Allegan is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

 
   

3 7/24/2023 

Motion by Hanse with support from Andrus to authorize the transfer of FY2019 airport 
funds to the Coleman A. Young Airport. Motion passed 7-0. 

 
11E.2 – Request to authorize a purchase order for Riverworks Construction for repairs to 
the Riverfront Boardwalk in the amount of $87,610.00 and reject the low bid of TJM 
Services for bid inaccuracies. 
 
Motion by Andrus with support from Morgan to authorize the purchase order for 
Riverworks Construction and reject the low bid from TJM Services. Motion passed 7-0. 

 
11F. City Manager & City Clerk 
 

11F.1 – Request to accept the June 2023 Downtown Infrastructure and Streetscape 
Project Progress Report.  
 
11F.2 – Request to approve the proposed land division of Parcel #03-51-200-004-00, 
located at 925 River Street. 

 
Motion by Hanse with support from Bird to approve the proposed land division. Motion 
passed 7-0. 

 
11F.3 – Request to approve the proposed plat amendment of Parcel #03-51-100-061-00 
and -190-027-00. 
 
Motion by Bird with support from Hanse to approve the proposed plat amendment. 
Motion passed 7-0. 

 
 11F.4 – Request to approve the FY2024 Lakeshore Advantage Contract. 
 

Motion by Andrus with support from Hanse to approve the FY2024 Lakeshore 
Advantage Contract. Motion passed 7-0. 

 
11F.5 – Request to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign a three-year lease 
agreement with Saunders Chiropractic Clinic, PLLC. 
 
Motion by Hanse with support from Bird to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign 
the three-year lease agreement with Saunders Chiropractic Clinic, PLLC. Motion passed 
7-0.  

 
12. Board Appointments 
 

12A – Appointment of Sara Ramaker to the Historic District Commission with a term set 
to expire on December 31, 2026. 
 
Motion by Andrus with support from Hanse to appoint Sara Ramaker to the Historic 
District Commission. Motion passed 7-0. 
 
12B – Appointment of Marjori Cantwell to the Historic District Commission with a term 



 

The minutes of this meeting will be available at City Hall, 231 Trowbridge Street Allegan, MI 49010 269.673.5511 
The City of Allegan is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

 
   

4 7/24/2023 

set to expire on December 31, 2026. 
 
Motion by Hanse with support from Morgan to appoint Marjori Cantwell to the Historic 
District Commission. Motion passed 7-0. 

 
13. Communications from City Manager, Council & Mayor 
 

City Manager Dye discussed recent positive interactions he has had with people visiting 
Allegan as well as members of the community. 
 
Councilmember Morgan mentioned various blight issues he has noticed around the city. 
 
Councilmember Andrus spoke about a recent discussion she had with Paul Wylie about gypsy 
moths. 
 
Councilmember Zeter reignited a discussion about issues brought by Ron Jones and Zeb & 
Kim Flora.  
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Bird expressed his hesitation about a program to spray for gypsy moths and 
mentioned a conversation he overheard at last Friday’s Rollin’ on the River. 
 
Councilmember Zeter asked about damage to the Jaycee Park restrooms. 

 
Mayor Galloway discussed long grass in the Industrial Park and a special meeting to go over 
Council’s annual evaluation of the City Manager. 

 
14. Closed Session 
 

15. Adjournment 
 
Mayor Galloway adjourned the meeting at 8:13 PM. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
Michaela Kleehammer, City Clerk 



City Manager’s Office 
231 Trowbridge Street 

Allegan, MI 49010 
269.673.5511 

 
MEMORANDUM 
  
TO:   Allegan City Council 
FROM:   Michaela Kleehammer, City Clerk 
REVIEWED BY:  Joel Dye, City Manager 
DATE:   August 14, 2022  
 
SUBJECT:  Public Hearing and approval of an 8-year OPRA Certificate for 128 

Locust Street 
 
Action Requested:  
It is requested that the City Council hold a public hearing and approve an 8-year Obsolete 
Property Rehabilitation Act (OPRA) Certificate for 128 Locust Street.   
 
Background:  
Dewey Family Properties LLC has owned 128 Locust Street, formerly known as Creative Events 
and more recently as the Regent Arcade Showroom, since April 2020. It is their intention to 
completely rehab the first and second floor of the building in addition to the entire exterior. Their 
intent is to apply for funding from the MEDC to assist in this redevelopment. As with all 
applications to the MEDC, the city must contribute to the project and the MEDC considers the 
approval of an OPRA Certificate as a contribution. 
 
In 2022, the City Council approved an OPRA Policy which helps determine how many years a 
project qualifies for based on certain criteria. When scoring this project, it appears that this project 
qualifies for an 8-year OPRA Certificate. The project automatically starts with 6 years and then 
receives an additional year for each point below: 
 

a. The entirety of the building is being rehabilitated, or because of this project, the 
entire building, minus attics, above the street level will be fully utilized.   

b.  The development will result in a mixed commercial/residential use.  
 

 
Attachment(s): 
OPRA Application 
Proposed Building Plans 
Assessor Letter 
OPRA Policy 
Resolution 23.25 







ED12222

PRICING

12
8 

LO
CU

ST
 S

TR
EE

T
BU

IL
DI

N
G 

RE
M

O
DE

L
AL

LE
GA

N
, M

IC
HI

GA
N

 4
90

10

RMD

THIS IS 6"

TH
IS

 IS
 6

"

Sheet Index



ED12222

PRICING

12
8 

LO
CU

ST
 S

TR
EE

T
BU

IL
DI

N
G 

RE
M

O
DE

L
AL

LE
GA

N
, M

IC
HI

GA
N

 4
90

10

RMD

THIS IS 6"

TH
IS

 IS
 6

"



ED12222

PRICING

12
8 

LO
CU

ST
 S

TR
EE

T
BU

IL
DI

N
G 

RE
M

O
DE

L
AL

LE
GA

N
, M

IC
HI

GA
N

 4
90

10

RMD

THIS IS 6"

TH
IS

 IS
 6

"



ED12222

PRICING

12
8 

LO
CU

ST
 S

TR
EE

T
BU

IL
DI

N
G 

RE
M

O
DE

L
AL

LE
GA

N
, M

IC
HI

GA
N

 4
90

10

RMD

THIS IS 6"

TH
IS

 IS
 6

"



ED12222

PRICING

12
8 

LO
CU

ST
 S

TR
EE

T
BU

IL
DI

N
G 

RE
M

O
DE

L
AL

LE
GA

N
, M

IC
HI

GA
N

 4
90

10

RMD

THIS IS 6"

TH
IS

 IS
 6

"



ED12222

PRICING

12
8 

LO
CU

ST
 S

TR
EE

T
BU

IL
DI

N
G 

RE
M

O
DE

L
AL

LE
GA

N
, M

IC
HI

GA
N

 4
90

10

RMD

THIS IS 6"

TH
IS

 IS
 6

"



ED12222

PRICING

12
8 

LO
CU

ST
 S

TR
EE

T
BU

IL
DI

N
G 

RE
M

O
DE

L
AL

LE
GA

N
, M

IC
HI

GA
N

 4
90

10

RMD

THIS IS 6"

TH
IS

 IS
 6

"



ED12222

PRICING

12
8 

LO
CU

ST
 S

TR
EE

T
BU

IL
DI

N
G 

RE
M

O
DE

L
AL

LE
GA

N
, M

IC
HI

GA
N

 4
90

10

RMD

THIS IS 6"

TH
IS

 IS
 6

"



ED12222

PRICING

12
8 

LO
CU

ST
 S

TR
EE

T
BU

IL
DI

N
G 

RE
M

O
DE

L
AL

LE
GA

N
, M

IC
HI

GA
N

 4
90

10

RMD

THIS IS 6"

TH
IS

 IS
 6

"



ED12222

PRICING

12
8 

LO
CU

ST
 S

TR
EE

T
BU

IL
DI

N
G 

RE
M

O
DE

L
AL

LE
GA

N
, M

IC
HI

GA
N

 4
90

10

RMD

THIS IS 6"

TH
IS

 IS
 6

"



STATEMENT OF OBSOLESCENCE FROM ASSESSOR 

Subject Property Address: 128 Locust Street 
PP# 03-51-205-002-00 
 
The building that is the subject of this request is a typical, two-story, downtown building constructed in 
1886. The first floor of the building has been used as commercial retail space for many years while the 
second floor has been unused for approximately 50 years. The second floor is completely unusable in its 
present condition. The obsolescence is evident in the lack of modern electrical, plumbing, and 
mechanical systems as well as the poor condition of the walls, floors, and ceilings. The windows are 
missing and completely blocked off. The doors are also very old and inefficient by today’s standards. In 
the opinion of the assessor, this property suffers in excess of 50% functional obsolescence. 

 

 

  

 



City of Allegan Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act (OPRA) Policy 
 
 

Purpose of Policy: The purpose of this policy is to set guidelines for City Council to operate within 
when reviewing and considering whether to offer an Obsolete Property 
Rehabilitation Tax Abatement.  

 
What is an OPRA: The Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act (OPRA), Public Act 146 of 2000, 

provides for a tax incentive to encourage the redevelopment of obsolete 
buildings. A new exemption will not be granted after December 31, 2026, but an 
exemption then in effect will continue until the certificate expires. The tax 
incentive is designed to assist in the redevelopment of older buildings in which a 
facility is contaminated, blighted or functionally obsolete. The goal is to 
rehabilitate older buildings into vibrant commercial and mixed-use projects. 

 
How Does it Work: A community essentially freezes the existing taxable value on a designated 

facility for up to 12 years. Additionally, the state treasurer may approve 
reductions of half of the school operating and state education taxes for a period 
not to exceed six years for 25 applications annually for rehabilitated facilities. By 
freezing the taxable value, it provides an incentive for the developer to make 
significant improvements to a building without increasing the property taxes on 
the building. 

 
Standards: 

1. The City will always offer a 6-year OPRA if the rehabilitation project qualifies 
under the State Act 146 of 2000 and is located withing a OPRA District.   

2. The City will add one additional year for each of the following qualifying 
improvements: 

a. The entirety of the building is being rehabilitated, or because of this 
project, the entire building, minus attics, above the street level will 
be fully utilized.    

b. The rehabilitation project will include green building technology, 
such as solar panels, green insulation, geothermal heating, energy 
efficient windows, energy efficient appliances, renewable materials, 
etc.   

c. The development will include the creation of affordable housing per 
the state and federal guidelines.   

d. The development will result in a mixed commercial/residential use.  
3. The City will not approve an OPRA Certificate for more than 10 years.  
4. If the rehabilitation project does not commence within 12 months, the City 

holds the right to withdraw the OPRA Certificate.    
 
 
 



 

 
 

CITY OF ALLEGAN 
RESOLUTION 23.25 

 
Approving Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate Application for 

Dewey Family Properties LLC, Located at 128 Locust Street 
 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AN OBSOLETE PROPERTY REHABILITATION 
EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE APPLICATION  

PA 146 OF 2000 AS AMENDED 
 
Minutes of a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Allegan, held on, Monday 

August 14, 2023, at 231 Trowbridge, Allegan City Hall, in Allegan, Michigan at 7:00 
p.m. 

 
The following preamble and resolution were offered by Council Member__________ and 
supported by Council Member____________. 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to PA 146 of 2000, the City of Allegan is a Qualified 
Local Governmental Unit eligible to establish one or more Obsolete Property 
Rehabilitation Districts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Allegan legally established the Downtown Allegan 
Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District No.1 on June 26, 2017, after a public hearing 
held on June 26, 2017 provided by section 3 of Public Act 146 of 2000; and 
 

WHEREAS, the taxable value of the property proposed to be exempt plus the 
aggregate taxable value of property already exempt under Public Act 146 of 2000 and 
under Public Act 198 of 1974 (IFT's) does not exceed 5% of the total taxable value of the 
City of Allegan; and 
 

WHEREAS, the application was approved at a public hearing as provided by 
section 4(2) of Public Act 146 of 2000 on Monday August 14, 2023; and 
 

WHEREAS, Dewey Family Properties LLC is not delinquent in any taxes related 
to the facility; and 
 

WHEREAS, the application is for obsolete property as defined in section 2(h) of 
Public Act 146 of 2000; and 
 



WHEREAS, the applicant Dewey Family Properties LLC has provided answers 
to all required questions under the application instructions to the City of Allegan; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Allegan requires that rehabilitation of the facility shall 
be completed by April 1, 2024; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Allegan reserves the right to grant extensions to the 
rehabilitation completion date, only if the applicant Dewey Family Properties LLC does 
so, in writing to the City Council within (30) thirty days; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Allegan reserves the right to withdraw and or cancel the 

OBSOLETE PROPERTY REHABILITATION EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE, of 
the applicant, Dewey Family Properties LLC, if the rehabilitation is not completed, 
within the rehabilitation completion date; and     
 

WHEREAS, the commencement of the rehabilitation of the facility did not occur 
before the establishment of the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District; and 
 

WHEREAS, the application relates to a rehabilitation program that when 
completed constitutes a rehabilitated facility within the meaning of Public Act 146 of 
2000 and that is situated within an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District established 
in the City of Allegan eligible under Public Act 146 of 2000 to establish such a district; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, completion of the rehabilitated facility is calculated to, and will at 
the time of issuance of the certificate, have the reasonable likelihood to, (increase 
commercial activity, create employment, retain employment, prevent a loss of 
employment, revitalize urban areas, or increase the number of residents in the 
community) in which the facility is situated; and 
 

WHEREAS, the rehabilitation includes improvements aggregating 10% or more 
of the true cash value of the property at commencement of the rehabilitation as provided 
by section 2(l) of Public Act 146 of 2000; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Allegan City Council adopted the City of Allegan 

Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Policy on April 25, 2022, to allow for an 
extension of the applicant’s Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of  
Allegan be and hereby is granted an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption for the 
real property, excluding land, located in the Downtown Allegan Obsolete Property 
Rehabilitation District No.1 at 128 Locust St for a period of 8 years, beginning December 
31, 2023 and ending December 30, 2031, pursuant to the provisions of  PA 146 of 2000, 
as amended. 
 
 



 
 

YEAS:  
NAYS:   
ABSTAIN:   
ABSENT:   

 
Dated:  __________________________ 

 
RESOLUTION DECLARED: ADOPTED/REJECTED 
 
 
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of a resolution 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Allegan, County of Allegan Michigan at a 
regular meeting held on Monday, August 14, 2023. 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
  Michaela Kleehammer, City Clerk 
 
 

CERTIFICATION  
 
I, Michaela Kleehammer, the duly appointed City Clerk of the City of Allegan, 
Allegan County, Michigan, certify that this is a true and complete copy of a 
resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Allegan at a meeting on 
Monday, August 14, 2023. 
 

____________________________________ 
Michaela Kleehammer, City Clerk 

 
 



Copies of the minutes of the Airport Advisory Board may be obtained at City Hall, 231 Trowbridge Street, Allegan, Michigan 

49010.  (269) 673-5511 

 
The City of Allegan is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

 

 

 

 

City of Allegan 

Airport Advisory Board 

740 Grand Street 

Allegan MI  49010 

August 7, 2023, at 5:30PM 

 

MINUTES 

 

 

I. Call to Order:  Chair Millin called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

Attendance: Members Present: Andy Millin - Chair, Bernie Sosnowski, Peter 

Hanse, Richard Guilifoil, Jack Ephofen, and Craig Warren 

 

Members Absent: Dennis Bennett, Jason Apol – Vice Chair. 

 

Others Present – Jon VanDuinen, P.E., Prein & Newhof Engineering, Doug 

Kadzban.  

 

II. Approval of minutes from June 2023 meeting (July 2023 meeting was canceled).   

Motion by Craig, Supported by Peter to approve the minutes of the June 2023 meeting.  

Passed unanimously. 

 

III. Old Business: 

 

a. None. 

 

IV. New Business: 

a. Airport Layout Plan (ALP) – Presentation by consultant.  Revised ALP is due to 

MDOT for their review prior to cone removals on turf runway.  Area in front of 

terminal building could potentially be sold in order to finance future, larger 

maintenance items, such as fuel tank replacement. AWOS relocated to easterly 

end of airport, need to maintain specified distance from obstructions for accuracy.  

Relocate future tee hangars from far east end to in front of existing tee hangars. 

b. Update Airport Capital Improvement Plan (ACIP). – presentation by consultant.  

Discussion of maintenance of old hangars.  Cannot use ACIP funds for painting 

building or door repairs, but replacements may be funded.  Added crack seal and 

striping for 2026 and partial fence construction project for 2028 to ACIP.  ACIP 

will be updated and submitted on 8/8/2023 to MDOT, as required.  Motion by 

Peter, Supported by Andy supporting revised ACIP. 

 

V. Airport Manager Comments: 



Copies of the minutes of the Airport Advisory Board may be obtained at City Hall, 231 Trowbridge Street, Allegan, Michigan 

49010.  (269) 673-5511 

 
The City of Allegan is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

a. Next meeting scheduled for Monday October 2, 2023.  SEPTEMBER 

MEETING CANCELLED due to Labor Day Holiday.  

b. Hangar leases – Full occupancy as of 08/01/23. 

c. Hillsdale “Patriots Day” Fly-in September 10, 2023 at Hillsdale Airport. 

d. MAP transfer of $104,000 left over from FY2019.  Transferred from 35D to 

Coleman A. Young Airport (DET).  We could not spend the funds due to 

provisional license. 

 

VI. Advisory Board Comments: 

a. Windsock condition has deteriorated recently.   

b. Light out, possible fixture missing, too. 

c. Windsock frame may need lubricating.  

d. Mentioned options to replace turf runway.  Watervliet has an area for landing on 

turf that is not specified as a runway.  

 

VII. Adjournment: Motion by Craig, Supported by Jack to adjourn at 6:01 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

CITY OF ALLEGAN 
MINUTES OF THE HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 

Held at Allegan City Hall 
231 Trowbridge Street, Allegan, MI 49010 

On Monday August 7, 2023, 7:00pm 
 

1. The meeting was Called to Order at 7:00 p.m. by Vice Chairperson Jason Ramaker 
 

2. Attendance  
Present:  Jason Ramaker, Mike Zeter, Kristen Noecker, Carolyn Blass, Marjorie 

Cantwell, and Sara Ramaker 
Absent:  Rosie Hunter 
Staff:   Joel Dye, City Manager 

 
3. Business Meeting 

 
Election of Chair 

Motion by Marjorie Cantwell, supported by Kristen Noecker to appoint Jason Ramaker as Chair 
for the remainder of the 2023 Calendar Year. Motion Carried 6-0. 

Election of Vice Chair 

Motion by Jason Ramaker, supported by Sara Ramaker to appoint Carolyn Blass as the Vice 
Chair for the remainder of the 2023 Calendar Year. Motion Carried 6-0. 

4. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes 
 
Motion by Sara Ramaker, supported by Kristen Noecker to approve the minutes of the July 5, 2023, 
Historic District Commission. Motion carried 6-0.  

5. Public Comment 
 

6. Certificate of Appropriateness Applications 
 
6A.  402 Trowbridge Street – New Windows and Gutters 
 
Applicant Whitney Reeds reviewed her request to replace all the existing wood windows with 
vinyl windows and to replace and add, where missing, gutters on the structure at 402 Trowbridge.  
During her review Whitney Reeds mentioned that 402 Trowbridge, which was formerly the Safe 
Harbor Building, will now be home to Little Tigers Learning Center as a second location.   
 
Motion by Sarah Ramaker, supported by Marjorie Cantwell, to approve this application based on 
the Department of Interior Standards 1, 3, 4, and 5. Motion Carried 6-0.   
 



6B.  314 Trowbridge Street – New Sign 
 
The Commission reviewed an application to replace an existing sign with painted wood sign for 
Orton Tooman, PC.   
 
Motion by Carolyn Blass, supported by Sara Ramaker, to approve this application based on the 
Department of Interior Standards 2, 3, and 4. Motion Carried 6-0.   
 

7. Historic District Commission Next Steps Review and Discussion  
 
The commission held a discussion on their next steps and how they wanted to operate.  During 
this discussion, Sara Ramaker asked audience member and city council member Dave Redding 
his thoughts on the HDC and Dave recommended that someone, and probably staff, should be 
writing down the ideas from the discussion the commission was having, since a lot of good ideas 
were being shared. The commission then discussed that a report on what the HDC should do was 
already prepared by the previous commission.  Staff was then asked to send out the report that the 
previous commission sent to City Council in November of 2022 for their review and agreed to 
discuss this report at their September meeting.  
 

8. Member and Staff Comments 
 
Jason Ramaker requested, and the commission agreed that in addition to the Certificate of 
Appropriateness that each applicant receives that the staff should also type up a thank you letter 
and the commission should sign the thank you letter and send that letter to each person who 
applies for a certificate of appropriateness.  
 

9. Adjournment 
 
Chairman Jason Ramaker adjourned the meeting at 8:02 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted by 
Joel Dye, City Manager 



The City of Allegan is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
City of Allegan 
Downtown Development Authority Meeting 
City of Allegan Council Chambers 
231 Trowbridge Street  
 
August 9, 2023 

1. Call to Order 
 
Meeting was called to order at 8:00am.  
 

2. Attendance  

Present: Vice Chair Michelle Liggett, Mayor Teresa Galloway, Carl Canales, Carleigh 
Ackerman, Nicole Heslip, Kelly McLean (8:06am), Phil Siegler, Steve Tibbitts 

 
Absent: Chair Mark Heather 

 
Others Present: Parker Johnson, Downtown Manager and Assistant to the City Manager 
   Joel Dye, City Manager 

3. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes  

Motion to approve the minutes from July 10, 2023 by Canales, supported by Heslip. 
Motion carried 6-0. 

4. Public Comment 

None 

5. Discussion Items 

a. Downtown Improvement Project Update 
 
Johnson gave an update regarding the Downtown Improvement Project. The update 
included the weekly updates from the contractor. General discussion was had. 

b. Wayfinding Signage Update 
 



The City of Allegan is an equal opportunity provider and employer. 

 

Johnson, with the help of Mayor Galloway and Heslip who participate in the 
steering committee, gave an update regarding the wayfinding signage project 
progress including the July 26 and 27 site visit by Guide Studio. 
 

c. Match on Main- Heronmark Update 

Johnson provided an update on the status of the Match on Main grant from the 
MEDC and facilitated by the City of Allegan on behalf of Heronmark. All final 
documents were successfully submitted and payment and reimbursement are 
expected to be completed by the next DDA meeting. 

6. Comments from City Staff & Board Members 
 

a. The DDA wants to explore options for public restrooms in the core downtown 
area in addition to the Riverfront Restrooms citing increased attendance at events 
and shopping and gathering areas. 
 

b. Johnson and Dye answered questions regarding the planned dumpsters and the 
accompanying refuse program details for DDA board members. 

 
7. Adjournment 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:48am. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Parker Johnson 
Downtown Manager & Assistant to the City Manager 



City of Allegan 
Finance Department  

269.673.5511 
231 Trowbridge Street 

Allegan, MI 49010 
 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Allegan City Council 
FROM: Carol Canales, Finance Clerk 
REVIEWED BY: Joel Dye, City Manager  
DATE: August 14th, 2023 

 
SUBJECT: Approval of Accounts Payable and Payroll 

 
 

Action Requested: 
It is requested that City Council approve accounts payable in the amount of $2,418,355.03 and 
payroll in the amount of $115,413.82 for a total disbursement of $2,533,768.85. 

 
Background: 
Attached is the Disbursement Report highlighting the accounts payable by fund as well as listing 
the individual payments to the vendors paid through August 14th, 2023. 

 
 

Attachment(s): 
Disbursement Report 



General Fund 148,475.25$             
Major Streets 52,306.44$                
Local Streets 130,306.73$             

Grants 32,800.47$                
DDA 1,885.00$                  

PA 4,849.70$                  
Sewer 193,146.24$             
Water 156,128.37$             

Motor Vehicle Pool 48,281.56$                
Trust  & Agency 1,650,175.27$          

Total A/P by Fund 2,418,355.03$          

Regular Check Run 522,668.10$             
ACH/EFT/Wires 183,731.95$             
Off-Cycle Check Runs 1,711,954.98$          
Total Checks 2,418,355.03$          

Payroll Check Remittances 1,471.27$                  
Payroll EFT Remittances 37,954.27$                
Total Remittances 39,425.54$               
Payroll - July 31st (for WE 07/30/2023) 75,988.28$                
Total Payroll 115,413.82$             

Total Disbursements 2,533,768.85$          

Disbursement Report
August 14, 2023

Accounts Payable by Fund
July 26th through August 14th, 2023



Ck# Vendor Description Amount Date
6326 A24 FILMS Film 250.00$              07/19/23
6327 NETFLIX Film 250.00$              07/19/23
6328 PARAMOUNT Film 600.00$              07/19/23
6329 SONY Film 150.00$              07/19/23
6330 UNIVERSAL FILM EXCHANGES L Film 175.00$              07/19/23
6331 WALT DISNEY STUDIOS Film 1,040.25$           07/19/23
6332 ARCADIA SEATING COMPANY Regent - Cup Holders 1,049.50$           07/27/23
6333 CARTER CONSULTING LLC Admin Services - 109 Locust Rehab 920.00$              07/27/23
6334 EVANS, MEGAN UB Refund 75.45$                07/27/23
6335 KUGELARD PROPERTY SERVICES 109 Locust Rehab 31,880.47$        07/27/23
6336 RICE LAKE WEIGHING SYSTEMS Polished Weights 18.05$                07/27/23
6337 HAVILAND PRODUCTS COMPANBalance Due 400.00$              07/28/23
6338 WALT DISNEY STUDIOS Film 377.44$              07/28/23
6339 ALLEGAN COUNTY TREASURER Taxes 51,097.56$        08/02/23
6340 ALLEGAN PUBLIC SCHOOLS Taxes 24,173.62$        08/02/23
6341 ALLEGAN TRUE VALUE HARDWAJune Statement 2,638.62$           08/02/23
6342 THE MAINSTAYS Rollin' on the River 1,200.00$           08/02/23
6343 PINE VALLEY ENTERTAINMENT Rollin' on the River 1,200.00$           08/02/23
6344 STEPHANIE REDMAN Rollin' on the River 1,000.00$           08/02/23
6345 FAMILY FARM AND HOME Parts/Supplies 102.44$              08/02/23
6346 MUNICIPAL ADVISORY COUNCIL  Annual Fee 100.00$              08/02/23
6347 ANDY'S ACE HARDWARE July Statement 572.76$              08/02/23
6348 ALLEGAN COUNTY TREASURER Taxes 725,194.16$      08/03/23
6349 ALLEGAN PUBLIC SCHOOLS Taxes 766,278.35$      08/03/23
6350 MICHIGAN DEPT OF TREASURY 2022 MSHDA Fee 16,085.66$        08/03/23
6351 STATE OF MICHIGAN 2023-24 SMR OPRA 14,671.38$        08/03/23
6352 STATE OF MICHIGAN 2023-24 SMR IFT 68,760.20$        08/03/23
6353 WARNER BROTHERS Film 1,694.07$           08/03/23

Total Manual Checks 1,711,954.98$  

Ck# Vendor Description Amount  Date
6354 MISDU Child Support 860.96$              08/03/23
6355 HOLLAND COMMUNITY HOSPITWage Garnishments 133.31$              08/03/23
6356 SEIU Union Dues 477.00$              08/03/23

Total Payroll Checks **Included in Payroll Total 1,471.27$          

EFT# Vendor Description Amount  Date
EFT 1049 JOHN HANCOCK Retirement - 457/Loan 3,246.54$           08/03/23
EFT 1050 FEDERAL TAX DEPOSIT Federal Taxes 25,788.51$        08/03/23
EFT 1051 MERS DC Retirement - PD 232.16$              08/03/23
EFT 1052 JOHN HANCOCK Retirement - MPP 8,163.50$           08/03/23
EFT 1053 AFLAC Premiums 523.56$              08/03/23

Total Payroll EFT Payments 37,954.27$        

Total Manual Checks 1,751,380.52$  

8/14/2023

Off Cycle Check Runs

Payroll Remittance Checks Report

EFT Payroll Payment Report



Check 
Date Ck# Vendor Name Description  Total Amount 

7/17/2023 3327 CITY OF ALLEGAN Utility Billing - May 2023 10,056.83$    
7/17/2023 3328 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 5511 - 1451 29TH ST 478.66$          
7/17/2023 3329 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 3674 - 1451 29TH ST 82.36$            
7/17/2023 3330 HUNTINGTON BANK Account Analysis Fee - June 2023 655.34$          
7/18/2023 3331 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 2350 - 231 TROWBRIDGE ST 1,101.26$       
7/18/2023 3332 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 1078 - 261 HUBBARD ST 672.50$          
7/20/2023 3333 ONEAMERICA Premiums 2,429.84$       
7/21/2023 3334 REPUBLIC SERVICES INC Statement - June 2023 4,791.74$       
7/20/2023 3335 ENTERPRISE FLEET MANAGEMENMaintenance Management 38,242.93$    
7/25/2023 3336 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 5442 - 211 TROWBRDIGE ST 1,205.98$       
7/25/2023 3337 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 3314 - 435 N EASTERN AVE 1,085.57$       
7/25/2023 3338 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 4734 - 170 MONROE ST 1,073.92$       
7/25/2023 3339 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 2192 - 691 AIRWAY DR 522.71$          
7/25/2023 3340 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 0173 - 125 BRADY ST 468.70$          
7/25/2023 3341 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 0803 - 634 HOOKER RD 322.59$          
7/25/2023 3342 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 3199 - 401 HUBBARD ST 261.39$          
7/25/2023 3343 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 3769 - 401 HUBBARD ST 236.91$          
7/25/2023 3344 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 9610 - 740 GRAND ST NEW TERM 225.44$          
7/25/2023 3345 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 0527 - 111 2ND ST 223.89$          
7/25/2023 3346 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 2691 - 740 GRAND ST STE 22 188.56$          
7/25/2023 3347 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 8548 - 621 VERNON ST 187.33$          
7/25/2023 3348 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 7046 - 740 GRAND AIRPRT LTS 152.13$          
7/25/2023 3349 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 5804 - 130 WATER ST 114.50$          
7/25/2023 3350 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 5852 - 740 GRAND ST HSE 111.89$          
7/25/2023 3351 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 4627 - 224 MONROE ST 100.44$          
7/25/2023 3352 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 5795 - 613 1/2 GRAND ST 65.53$            
7/25/2023 3353 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 6558 - 301 MARSHALL ST 61.54$            
7/25/2023 3354 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 8468 - 1000 MARSHALL ST 54.36$            
7/25/2023 3355 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 7010 - 605 DELANO ST 53.30$            
7/25/2023 3356 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 7927 - 150 KENT ST 53.30$            
7/25/2023 3357 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 3479 - 225 LANE ST 53.30$            
7/25/2023 3358 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 3799 - 1 RIVERFRONT PLAZA 50.99$            
7/25/2023 3359 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 4007 - 335 HUBBARD ST 47.63$            
7/25/2023 3360 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 3817 - 810 GRAND ST 47.16$            
7/25/2023 3361 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 2263 - 111 HUBBARD ST 45.34$            
7/25/2023 3362 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 5699 - 211 1/2 TROWBRIDGE ST 41.52$            
7/25/2023 3363 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 6392 - 101 MARSHALL ST 41.06$            
7/25/2023 3364 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 3660 - 355 THOMAS ST 41.06$            
7/25/2023 3365 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 3876 - 130 MILL RD 39.83$            
7/25/2023 3366 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 5001 - 700 RIVER ST STE B 38.00$            
7/25/2023 3367 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 0363 - 115 BRADY ST 36.15$            
7/25/2023 3368 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 3922 - 1050 LINCOLN RD SIGN 35.07$            
7/25/2023 3369 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 6768 - 540 CUTLER ST 32.94$            
7/25/2023 3370 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 2790 - 477 WESTERN AVE 32.91$            
7/25/2023 3371 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 0928 - 636 HOOKER RD 30.95$            
7/25/2023 3372 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 2022 - 311 WESTERN AVE 30.34$            
7/25/2023 3373 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 0009 - 139 1/2 BRADY ST 28.81$            
7/25/2023 3374 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 6641 - 1251 29TH ST 28.81$            
7/25/2023 3375 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 6575 - 1201 113TH AVE 28.81$            
7/25/2023 3376 MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES JUNE 2023 - 0507845294-00001 - 100 PARK AVE 88.81$            

Check Register - EFT
8/14/2023



Check 
Date Ck# Vendor Name Description  Total Amount 

Check Register - EFT
8/14/2023

7/25/2023 3377 MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES JUNE 2023 - 0502783.913-00001 - 350 NORTH ST 58.89$            
7/25/2023 3378 MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES JUNE 2023 - 0503949974-000014 - 401 HUBBARD 54.19$            
7/25/2023 3379 MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES JUNE 2023 - 0502395219-00002 - 435 EASTERN 52.24$            
7/25/2023 3380 MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES JUNE 2023 - 0504694273-00001 - 170 MONROE 41.31$            
7/25/2023 3381 MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES JUNE 2023 - 0507889939-00001 - 621 VERNON ST 40.94$            
7/25/2023 3382 MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES JUNE 2023 - 0504049022-00001 - 211 TROWBRIDGE 37.00$            
7/25/2023 3383 MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES JUNE 2023 - 0502395219-00001 - 691 AIRWAY DR 36.32$            
7/25/2023 3384 MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES JUNE 2023 - 0505770651-00001 - 740 GRAND 35.73$            
7/25/2023 3385 MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES JUNE 2023 - 0505770651-00002 - 740 GRAND ST TERMINAL 34.46$            
7/27/2023 3386 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 3850 - 177 THOMAS ST 143.04$          
7/27/2023 3387 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 2579 - 223 HUBBARD ST UNIT 3 126.14$          
7/27/2023 3388 MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES JUNE 2023 - 0502395219-00004 - 223 RIVERFRONT PLZ 75.36$            
7/24/2023 3389 MERS OF MICHIGAN Retirement - PD 22,627.73$    
7/21/2023 3390 HUNTINGTON BANK Credit Card Statement - June 2023 7,772.69$       
7/28/2023 3391 MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES JUNE 2023 - 0503420042-00002 - 231 TROWBRIDGE 57.91$            
7/28/2023 3392 MICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES JUNE 2023 - 0502395219-00005 - 223 HUBBARD ST LOWER 40.81$            

8/2/2023 3393 CONSUMERS ENERGY AUGUST 2023 - 5978 - 346 NORTH ST 24,944.34$    
8/2/2023 3394 HEARTLAND Credit Card Fees - July 2023 626.99$          
8/2/2023 3395 METLIFE Premiums 652.23$          
8/2/2023 3396 PRIORITY HEALTH Premiums 47,330.03$    
8/4/2023 3397 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 3117 - STREET LIGHTS 4,078.86$       
8/4/2023 3398 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 8350 - 49010 LED LIGHT ROAD 1,931.97$       
8/4/2023 3399 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 3208 - STREET LIGHTS 67.07$            
8/4/2023 3400 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 3356 - TRAFFIC LIGHTS 52.18$            
8/4/2023 3401 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 3370 - 321 WATER ST 34.47$            
8/4/2023 3402 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 4732 - 1451 29TH ST L4 LIGHT 18.25$            
8/4/2023 3403 CONSUMERS ENERGY JULY 2023 - 0836 - 49010 SIREN RD 5.82$               
8/4/2023 3404 WEX BANK July Statement - WEX 4,381.78$       
8/4/2023 3405 WEX BANK July Statement - Speedway 447.80$          
8/8/2023 3406 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS HO  Internet - July 2023 1,644.57$       
8/8/2023 3407 INVOICE CLOUD Credit Card Fees - July 2023 179.90$          

Total EFT Payments: 81 183,731.95$  



Check 
Date

Check 
# Vendor Name Description  Total Amount 

# 
Invoices

8/4/2023 6357 ABONMARCHE Lead Service Line Replacement 7,528.75$         1
8/4/2023 6358 ABONMARCHE DWAM/DSMI Engineering Services 3,528.75$         1
8/4/2023 6359 ABONMARCHE Lead Service Line Replacement 3,799.60$         1
8/4/2023 6360 ABONMARCHE Engineering Services - Rossman Park 4,655.00$         1
8/4/2023 6361 ABONMARCHE 2023 Downtown Streetscape 44,152.20$       1
8/4/2023 6362 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Supplies 315.09$             2
8/4/2023 6363 APT US&C Membership Renewal 159.00$             1
8/4/2023 6364 CURCIO LAW FIRM PLC Professional Services - July 2023 2,160.00$         1
8/4/2023 6365 DE NORA WATER TECHNOLOGIES LLC Miox Parts 434.47$             1
8/4/2023 6366 DELUXE ECHOSTAR LLC Film 120.00$             3
8/4/2023 6367 GALLAGHER INDUSTRIAL LAUNDRY INC Uniforms 272.02$             1
8/4/2023 6368 Guide Studio, Inc. Wayfinding Program 7,450.00$         1
8/4/2023 6369 HAMMERSMITH EQUIPMENT CO., INC. Clipper Blade 380.00$             1
8/4/2023 6370 HYDROCORP Cross Connection Inspections 1,812.00$         2
8/4/2023 6371 KAECHELE PUBLICATIONS, INC Publishing 380.00$             1
8/4/2023 6372 METRON FARNIER LLC Service Plan/Meter Supplies 12,190.50$       3
8/4/2023 6373 R.W. MERCER COMPANY A Operator Agreement 500.00$             1
8/4/2023 6374 SME-SOIL & MATERIALS ENGINEERS INC 300 Monroe St - Leaking Storage Tank 2,388.00$         1
8/4/2023 6375 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL LLCOffice Supplies 492.78$             2
8/4/2023 6376 TRACE ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES INC Testing 152.00$             1
8/4/2023 6377 VC3 INC VOID 496.08$             1
8/4/2023 6378 WAANDERS CONCRETE CO. Limestone/Fill Sand 918.74$             3
8/4/2023 6379 WADE TRIM, INC Engineering Inspection - Eastern Lift Station 624.30$             1
8/4/2023 6380 WASTE RECOVERY SYSTEMS Hydro Excavating 11,981.34$       1
8/4/2023 6381 WYOMING ASPHALT PAVING CO INC Asphalt 335.00$             1

8/10/2023 6382 PROFESSIONAL CODE INSPECTONS OF M Planning and Zoning - Through 06/30/23 300.00$             1
8/10/2023 6383 DIEMER, SHAWN Farmers Market - Double Up Reimbursement 847.00$             1
8/10/2023 6384 JESSICA LAMBRIGHT Farmers Market - Double Up Reimbursement 18.00$               1
8/10/2023 6385 MICHAEL HENDERBERG Farmers Market - Double Up Reimbursement 127.00$             1
8/10/2023 6386 MICHELLE KRCATOVICH Farmers Market - Fee 85.00$               1
8/10/2023 6387 SANDRA IXCOT Farmers Market - Double Up Reimbursement 46.00$               1
8/10/2023 6388 STEVE HUBBART Farmers Market - Double Up Reimbursement 34.00$               1
8/10/2023 6389 ACCURATE CLEANING SERVICE, LLC Cleaning Services 1,000.00$         1
8/10/2023 6390 ALLEGAN RENTALS INC Echo Power Blend 26.99$               1
8/10/2023 6391 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Supplies 1,174.70$         5
8/10/2023 6392 ASSESSING SOLUTIONS INC Assessing - July 2023 3,710.00$         1
8/10/2023 6393 AUTO-WARES GROUP Auto Parts/Supplies 1,180.23$         9
8/10/2023 6394 BERENDS HENDRICKS STUIT INSURANCE Positively Allegan - July 3 Jubilee 850.00$             1
8/10/2023 6395 CARROT-TOP INDUSTRIES INC Aluminum Grave Markers - Balance 319.62$             1
8/10/2023 6396 CORDES INC Hauling 715.00$             1
8/10/2023 6397 DELUXE ECHOSTAR LLC Film 40.00$               1
8/10/2023 6398 ETNA SUPPLY COMPANY Parts/Supplies 201.39$             1
8/10/2023 6399 FAMILY FARM AND HOME V Belt 14.99$               1
8/10/2023 6400 GALLAGHER INDUSTRIAL LAUNDRY INC Uniforms 840.72$             3
8/10/2023 6401 GRAND RAPIDS POPCORN, LLC Regent Concessions 877.20$             1
8/10/2023 6402 GRANITE TELECOMMUNICATIONS LLC Elevator Phone - 350 North 43.32$               1
8/10/2023 6403 GREAT LAKES COCA-COLA DISTRIBUTION Regent Concessions 1,042.20$         1
8/10/2023 6404 HARN R/O SYSTEMS, INC. Drum 7,760.52$         1
8/10/2023 6405 INDUSCO SUPPLY CO INC Towel Rolls 139.72$             1
8/10/2023 6406 JAMIE VAN SLYKE Cleaning Services - Riverfront Restrooms 550.00$             1
8/10/2023 6407 JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC. Annual HVAC Agreement 3,761.00$         1
8/10/2023 6408 LOCK MASTER SECURITY LLC Cloud Access - WTP 150.00$             1
8/10/2023 6409 MICHIGAN ASSOC. OF CHIEFS OF POLICE Membership 115.00$             1

Check Register
8/14/2023



Check 
Date

Check 
# Vendor Name Description  Total Amount 

# 
Invoices

Check Register
8/14/2023

8/10/2023 6410 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE (UE) MML Dues/Legal Defense Fund 4,028.00$         1
8/10/2023 6411 MILBOCKER & SONS INC 2023 Downtown Streetscape 364,026.69$     1
8/10/2023 6412 NAPA AUTO PARTS OF ALLEGAN Auto Parts/Supplies 59.70$               1
8/10/2023 6413 OLD DOMINION BRUSH COMPANY Hose 954.76$             1
8/10/2023 6414 ON DUTY GEAR ID Tags 24.00$               1
8/10/2023 6415 PHOENIX SAFETY OUTITTERS LLC Uniforms 313.11$             1
8/10/2023 6416 PLM LAKE & LAND MANAGEMENT CORP Weed Treatment 1,250.00$         1
8/10/2023 6417 POWERPLAN-JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL Parts - Backhoe/Leaf Vac 377.79$             3
8/10/2023 6418 PROFESSIONAL CODE INSPECTONS OF M Permits - July 2023 4,309.20$         1
8/10/2023 6419 RICE LAKE WEIGHING SYSTEMS Polished Weights - Balance 147.84$             1
8/10/2023 6420 RICOH USA, INC. Printing Services 169.01$             1
8/10/2023 6421 SITEONE LANSCAPING SUPPLY Parts/Supplies 5.21$                 1
8/10/2023 6422 SPRING BROOK SUPPLY Parts/Supplies 47.06$               1
8/10/2023 6423 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL LLCOffice Supplies 49.16$               1
8/10/2023 6424 STATE INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS CORP Water Treatment Programs 2,096.28$         4
8/10/2023 6425 SYSCO GRAND RAPIDS Regent Concessions 1,547.92$         1
8/10/2023 6426 Tod Neldon Employee Reimbursement - Supplies 59.32$               1
8/10/2023 6427 TRACE ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES INC Testing 807.50$             4
8/10/2023 6428 TRI-STATE THEATRE SERVICE, INC Film 175.00$             1
8/10/2023 6429 UNITED WHOLESALE GROCERY Regent Concessions 1,088.78$         1
8/10/2023 6430 USABLUEBOOK Parts/Supplies 1,241.75$         2
8/10/2023 6431 VC3 INC Annual VPN Licensing Fee 419.76$             1
8/10/2023 6432 VERIZON WIRELESS SERVICES LLC Phones 195.42$             1
8/10/2023 6433 WAANDERS CONCRETE CO. Limestone/Fill Sand 698.48$             3
8/10/2023 6434 WADE TRIM, INC Engineering Services - Eastern Ave Lift Station 4,003.60$         1
8/10/2023 6435 WARNER BROTHERS Film 1,072.01$         1
8/10/2023 6436 WEST MICHIGAN BASEBALL FRANCHISIN  Regent Concessions 645.60$             1
8/10/2023 6437 WESTSIDE SERVICE CENTER - ALLEGAN Tire Installation - Tractor 87.00$               1
8/10/2023 6438 WYOMING ASPHALT PAVING CO INC Asphalt 69.01$               1

Total Checks: 82 522,668.10$       116



City of Allegan 
Water Utilities 
269.686.1117 

350 North Street 
Allegan, MI 49010 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Allegan City Council 
FROM:  Doug Sweeris, Water Utilities Director 
REVIEWED BY: Joel Dye, City Manager 
DATE:   August 14, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Approve the purchase order for System Specialties to provide three 

diverting and isolation valves for the Water Resource Recovery Facility.     
 
Action Requested:  
It is requested that the City Council approve the purchase order for System Specialties for 
$12,566.00 to provide three diverting and isolation valves for the Water Resource Recovery 
Facility (WRRF).    
 
Background:  
The city currently uses a type of valve called the Red Valve to control flow to treatment basin 3 at 
the WRRF. The valve has been repaired previously and is currently failing and needs a new rubber 
sleeve and control nut which will cost $8,981.00 plus shipping. The WRRF Septage Receiving 
Station uses a type of valve called Rotork.  These valves have had fewer repairs than the Red Valve 
brand and are the city’s preferred valve brand. A new Rotork Valve will cost $8,790.00.   
 
In addition to the new Rotork Valve, we need to install two manual isolation valves for basin 3 
and the equalization basin.  The cost for the two manual isolation valves will cost $3,026.00.   
 
The cost of all three valves is $11,816.00. An additional $750 is estimated for shipping for a total 
request of $12,566.00. This is within the equipment repair and replacement budget for FY24. 
 
Attachment(s):  
Systems Specialties quote  
Kennedy Industries quotes on repair parts for the Red Valve 
P.O. for System Specialties 
Picture of Red Valve 
Picture of diverting pipes 
Picture of Rotork valve 
 









Valve replacement is part of the asset management and is covered by the current year AMP budget

Bidder Name Bid Amount

Date

Date

CM/Council Approval:

Finance Approval:

Date

Summary of All Bids Received

Notes:

Requested By:

Contract/Job #:

12,566.00Total:

750.00750.00590-568-98600estiamted shipping1

70.003.50590-568-98600chain for 8" plug valves20

2,956.001,478.00590-568-98600G.A. 8" plug valve2

8,790.008,790.00590-568-98600Rotork and 8" valve1

AmountUnit PriceGL NumberDescriptionQty.

Req. Description: Replacement control valve and lockout valves

BLOOMFIELD HILLS, MI  48302

390 ENTERPRISE COURT STE 200Address

SYSTEMS SPECIALTIES COMPANY
Preferred Vendor 547867DSweerisRequested By

Requested Date

568Department

07/26/2023

24-0724Purchase Requisition No

Purchase Requisition
07/26/2023

City of Allegan

231 Trowbridge Street

Allegan, MI 49010

(269) 673-5511

(269) 686-5139

Yes, AMP budget

July 26, 2023



City of Allegan 
Water Utilities 
269.686.1117 

350 North Street 
Allegan, MI 49010 

 
Red Valves for diverting to EQ basin and basin #3 
 



City of Allegan 
Water Utilities 
269.686.1117 

350 North Street 
Allegan, MI 49010 

 
Rotork valve in septage 



City of Allegan 
Water Utilities 
269.686.1117 

350 North Street 
Allegan, MI 49010 

 
Diverting lines to EQ basin and basin 3 
 
 



City of Allegan 
Water Utilities 
269.686.1117 

350 North Street 
Allegan, MI 49010 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Allegan City Council 
FROM:  Doug Sweeris, Water Utilities Director 
REVIEWED BY: Joel Dye, City Manager 
DATE:   August 14, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Approve the purchase order for Kennedy Industries (KISM) to provide 

replacement parts for the #2 JWC Septage Honey Monster.     
 
Action Requested:  
It is requested that City Council approve the purchase order for Kennedy Industries for $14,200.00.    
 
Background:  
Septage station #2, installed in 2012, has to have the fine screen replaced. The ¼” fine screen has 
been repaired several times and the metal in the screen is getting too thin to repair. The quote is 
for a replacement screen, two sets of gaskets for the equipment and two brushes for the screen 
auger.  
 
The listed parts cost is $12,912.72, plus shipping. An additional $1,287.28 was added for shipping 
for a total of $14,200.00. This purchase was budgeted for in the FY 24 as a capital purchase.  
 
 
Attachment(s):  
Kennedy quote for screen 
Kennedy JWC parts P.O. 
Picture of septage auger and screen 



QUOTATION

ALL800

CITY OF ALLEGAN

AP@CITYOFALLEGAN.ORG

231 TROWBRIDGE STREET

ALLEGAN, MI 49010 

JOB TITLE SLPCUSTOMER REF/PO#

B

I

L

L

 

T

O

ATTENTION:

7/13/2023 0050489

QUOTE REV 1

DATE NUMBER PAGE

1 1of

Accepted By:

Date:

PO#:

SHIPPING TYPE

WE ARE PLEASED TO PROPOSE THE FOLLOWING FOR YOUR CONSIDERATION:

BEST WAY PP&ADD

TOD HECKMAN               269-686-1117               theckman@cityofallegan.org

REA/KNFJWC,SCREENS AND BRUSHES, VARIOUS

Ship To:

DESCRIPTIONQTY

WE ARE PLEASED TO OFFER THE ATTACHED PROPOSAL FOR MATERIALS BY JWC ENVIRONMENTAL

(1) SRC0109-3235-480-06-SS, SN:109993-2-1

(2) AMA0160-3200-480-35, SN: 109993-2-1

(2) AMC0421-0480

REFER TO THE ATTACHED JWC ENVIRONMENTAL PROPOSAL FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

NET PRICE NOT INCLUDING FREIGHT OR TAXES: $12,912.72

**********************************************************

DELIVERY: APPROXIMATELY 14-16 WEEKS AFTER RECEIPT OF ORDER.

PIOR TO ORDER, PLEASE CONFIRM SERIAL NUMBER IS CORRECT.

**** IF FAVORED WITH AN ORDER, PLEASE MAKE PURCHASE ORDER TO JWC ENVIRONMENTAL.****

WE DO NOT INCLUDE: FREIGHT, INSTALLATION, SITE WORK, CONCRETE, ANCHORING, MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, OR 

START-UP UNLESS STATED ABOVE.

PRICE AND LEAD TIME ARE BASED OFF CURRENT MARKET PRICING AND AVAILABILITY AND ARE SUBJECT TO 

CHANGE.PLEASE NOTE QUOTE IS VALID FOR 30 DAYS.

WE APPRECIATE THIS OPPORTUNITY TO QUOTE AND LOOK FORWARD TO BEING OF FUTURE SERVICE.

SINCERELY,

KAILEE FINE

This quote is subject to and incorporates by reference Kennedy Industries, Inc.'s ("Kennedy")  Terms & Conditions  (Rev'd 6/2023) and 

Customer Warranty available at www.kennedyind.com which will be provided by email upon written request. Kennedy reserves the right to 

change the Terms & Conditions and Customer Warranty for future orders. By accepting this quote and/or issuing a purchase order relative to 

this quote, buyer expressly agrees to the provisions set forth in the Terms & Conditions and Customer Warranty posted on Kennedy's website.

QUOTE VALID FOR 30 DAYS. CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS ARE SUBJECT TO AN ADDITIONAL 3% 

CHARGE NO TAXES OF ANY KIND ARE INCLUDED IN THIS PROPOSAL. PAYMENT TERMS: NET 30

 

 

TOTAL:

P.O. Box 930079 Wixom, MI 48393   -   4925 Holtz Drive Wixom, MI 48393   -   Phone: 248-684-1200   -   Fax: 248-684-6011

www.Kennedyind.com

$12,912.72



Parts are sole sourced through the manufacturers local rep.

Bidder Name Bid Amount

Date

Date

CM/Council Approval:

Finance Approval:

Date

Summary of All Bids Received

Notes:

Requested By:

Contract/Job #:

14,200.00Total:

1,287.281,287.28590-568-97900estiamted shipping1

12,912.7212,912.72590-568-97900JWC repair parts1

AmountUnit PriceGL NumberDescriptionQty.

Req. Description: Septage 2 replacement fine screen

WIXOM, MI  48393

4925 HOLTZ DRIVEAddress

KENNEDY INDUSTRIES, INC.
Preferred Vendor 000817DSweerisRequested By

Requested Date

568Department

07/26/2023

24-0723Purchase Requisition No

Purchase Requisition
07/26/2023

City of Allegan

231 Trowbridge Street

Allegan, MI 49010

(269) 673-5511

(269) 686-5139

In FY 24 budget

July 26, 2023



City of Allegan 
Water Utilities 
269.686.1117 

350 North Street 
Allegan, MI 49010 

 
Septage screen and auger screw (with brush) 



 
 

 City of Allegan 
Water Utilities Department 

350 North Street 
Allegan, MI 49010 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Allegan City Council 
FROM:  Doug Sweeris, Water Utilities Director 
REVIEWED BY: Joel Dye, City Manager 
DATE:   August 14, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Eastern Avenue. lift station force main emergency work  
 
Action Requested:   
It is requested that the City Council accept a report regarding payment for emergency work 
performed by Waste Recovery Systems on the Eastern Avenue lift station force main.    
 
Background:  
June 18 and 19, 2023 the city water utilities staff, NorthWest Kent Mechanical and Waste 
Recovery Systems performed an emergency repair on the Eastern Avenue lift station force main. 
Waste Recovery System provided tanker trucks to bypass pump/tanker the sewage to the treatment 
plant while the force main was repaired. Waste Recovery also provided a second hydro-excavator 
to assist in keeping the work site open, clear and safe while the repairs were made. Waste Recovery 
Systems invoice for this work performed on June 18/19, 2023, is $11,981.34.  
 
This does require a budget adjustment for FY23.  
 
The work done for this emergency repair will be invoiced to Perrigo because the degradation of 
the force main was caused by their industrial discharge. Per Section 29-230 of the City’s Sewer 
Use Ordinance, any user who discharges to the POTW shall be liable for any damage caused by a 
discharge and shall fully reimburse the POTW for all expenses, costs, losses, or damages incurred 
by the POTW as a result of any such discharge. 
 
Attachment(s):  
Photo of pipe damage 
Photo of emergency repair 
Photo of job site 
Waste Recovery Systems invoice 



 
 

 City of Allegan 
Water Utilities Department 

350 North Street 
Allegan, MI 49010 

 

 
Damaged force main 



 
 

 City of Allegan 
Water Utilities Department 

350 North Street 
Allegan, MI 49010 

 

 
Emergency repaired force main 
 



 
 

 City of Allegan 
Water Utilities Department 

350 North Street 
Allegan, MI 49010 

 
 

 
Emergency repair work site 
 



INVOICE
DATE 7/12/2023

INVOICE # 77688

BILL TO

City of Allegan
231 Trowbridge Street
Allegan, MI  49010

JOB # P.O. N.O. TERMS

Net 30

DUE DATE 8/11/2023

TOTAL

4750 Clyde Park Ave. S.W. Wyoming, MI 49509
Phone: (616) 719-5597 Fax: (616) 719-5599

WWW.INDUSTRIALWASTERECOVERY.COM

DESCRIPTION AMOUNTSERVICED QUANTITY RATE

Utilized industrial hydro excavator in order to
assist the City of Allegan in hydro excavating
around a broken force main. Used a support
truck with 4 inch hose for bypass pumping. Used
another support truck with Godwin pump in
order to bypass the force main onto bulk tankers.
Once the main was exposed we assisted with
water control while the City of Allegan crew
made the necessary repairs. Disposed of all
collected materials onsite.

11,655.006/19/2023 11,655.00

Fuel Surcharge 326.34326.34

$11,981.34



City of Allegan 
City Manager’s Office 

269.673.5511 
231 Trowbridge Street 

Allegan, MI 49010 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Allegan City Council 
FROM:  Joel Dye, City Manager 
REVIEWED BY: N/A 
DATE:   August 14, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Request to approve updated AT&T cellular lease agreement terms 
 
Action Requested:  
It is requested that the City Council approve the updated AT&T cellular lease agreement terms, 
with the following conditions: 
 

• That the annual escalator stays at 3%. 
• That AT&T fix the damage that their contractor did during their last inspection.  

 
Background:  
The city currently leases the top of our Water Tower located at 180 Western Avenue to AT&T for 
their cellular network. Earlier this year, a representative for AT&T reached out to staff stating that 
they are looking at all their leases as they prepare for the implementation of 5G and have to remove 
towers.  Currently the city receives $24,611.71 each year from AT&T for the lease of the top of 
the water tower at 180 Western Avenue.  The current lease expires on February 14, 2030.   
 
In the attached document, AT&T is proposing the following modifications:   
 

• Commencing October 1, 2023: Adjust rent to a revised figure of $24,611.71 per year 
based on regional market analysis and operational performance statistics.  

 
• Rent will remain fixed until February 15, 2024. On this date, and every year thereafter, a 

2% escalator will take effect and be set into place until the termination or expiration of the 
lease.  

 
• Extend the life of the lease with up to 5 renewal terms (1 term is equal to 5 years).  

 
Staff reached out to Dixon Engineering, who is our Water Tower Engineering Firm and according 
to them, they believe AT&T is more than likely bluffing.  While city staff is fine in extending the 
lease from an expiration of February 14, 2030, to February 14, 2045, we feel the current 3% 
escalator is more than fair for both parties. Plus we feel like AT&T should repair the damage to 
the tower their contractor did.  
 
Attachment(s):  
AT&T Proposed Lease Agreement Terms 



10590 WEST OCEAN AIR DRIVE / SUITE 300 / SAN DIEGO, CA 92130 

 
 
 

July 24, 2023 
 
 
City of Allegan 
Attn: Joel Dye 
112 Locus Street 
Allegan, MI 49010 
 
Re:  AT&T Lease Expiration Program 
 
FA # 10144274; Lease ID: 129194, Cus - Allegan (Downtown), located at 180 Western Avenue, Allegan, 
MI 49010 
 
Dear Joel, 
 
As you are aware, AT&T Mobility (“AT&T”) has partnered with MD7, LLC ("MD7") to work with you to 
facilitate certain modifications to the cell site lease on your property.  These modifications will allow AT&T 
to meet current business requirements and enhance your site’s value to the network. AT&T has asked MD7 
to provide services in administering AT&T's Lease Expiration Program (LEP).  MD7 has been authorized 
by AT&T to correspond and discuss how the LEP program may be of benefit to you. 

 
Changes in the Wireless Industry 
Recent industry developments are changing how wireless telecommunications carriers operate.  In the 
past, carriers focused on rapidly building out their networks in order to provide the best coverage.  Today, 
while consumers are enjoying greater services and better coverage than ever before, operating costs 
continue to escalate.  As a result, the wireless industry is also focusing on operating networks as efficiently 
as possible. 
 
What does this mean to me?   
 
AT&T would like to work together with you in extending the current lease which is set to expire on 2/14/2030. 
AT&T is willing to offer the following modifications to secure a longer-term lease with you: 
 
Option A:  

 Commencing October 1, 2023: Adjust rent to a revised figure of $24,611.71 per year 
based on regional market analysis and operational performance statistics.  

 
 Rent will remain fixed until February 15, 2024.  On this date, and every year thereafter, a 

2% escalator will take effect and be set into place until the termination or expiration of the 
lease.  
 

 Extend the life of the lease with up to 5 renewal terms (1 term is equal to 5 years).  
 
Or  
 
Option B:  

 Lump Sum Payment Option: Provide a one-time lump sum payment of $234,525.00.  In return, you 
will grant a thirty (30) year easement on your property and assign the lease rights and rental income 
under your lease with AT&T to MD7 or an affiliate of MD7.   
 
 

In order to achieve the necessary lease flexibility required for upcoming technological shifts, the following 
language must be inserted into the existing lease:  



2 

 
 Termination 

 
“In addition to any rights that may exist in the Agreement, after the Rent Guarantee Period, as 
defined below, Tenant may terminate the Agreement at any time with thirty (30) days prior written 
notice to Landlord for any or no reason.” 
 
 

 Right of First Refusal 
 

“Notwithstanding any other provisions contained in the Agreement, if at any time after the Effective Date, 
Landlord receives a bona fide written offer from a third party seeking any sale, conveyance, assignment or 
transfer, whether in whole or in part, of any property interest in or related to the Premises, including without 
limitation any offer seeking an assignment or transfer of the Rent payments associated with the Agreement 
or an offer to purchase an easement with respect to the Premises (“Offer”), Landlord shall immediately 
furnish Tenant with a copy of the Offer.  Tenant shall have the right within ninety (90) days after it receives 
such copy to match the financial terms of the Offer and agree in writing to match such terms of the Offer.  
Such writing shall be in the form of a contract substantially similar to the Offer, but Tenant may assign its 
rights to a third party.  If Tenant chooses not to exercise this right or fails to provide written notice to Landlord 
within the ninety (90) day period, Landlord may sell, convey, assign or transfer such property interest in or 
related to the Premises pursuant to the Offer, subject to the terms of the Agreement.  If Landlord attempts to 
sell, convey, assign or transfer such property interest in or related to the Premises without complying with 
this paragraph, the sale, conveyance, assignment or transfer shall be void.  Tenant shall not be responsible 
for any failure to make payments under the Agreement and reserves the right to hold payments due under the 
Agreement until Landlord complies with this paragraph.  Tenant’s failure to exercise the right of first refusal 
shall not be deemed a waiver of the rights contained in this paragraph with respect to any future proposed 
conveyances as described herein.”    
 

 Sale of Property 
 
(a) “Landlord shall not be prohibited from the selling, leasing or use of any of the Property or 

the surrounding Property except as provided below.   
(b) If Landlord, at any time during the Term of the Agreement, decides to rezone or sell, 

subdivide or otherwise transfer all or any part of the Premises, or all or any part of the Property or surrounding 
Property, to a purchaser other than Tenant, Landlord shall promptly notify Tenant in writing, and such 
rezoning, sale, subdivision or transfer shall be subject to the Agreement and Tenant’s rights hereunder.  In 
the event of a change in ownership, transfer or sale of the Property, within ten (10) days of such transfer, 
Landlord or its successor shall send the documents listed below in this subsection (b) to Tenant.  Until Tenant 
receives all such documents, Tenant shall not be responsible for any failure to make payments under the 
Agreement and reserves the right to hold payments due under the Agreement.  

 
 i. Old deed to Property 
 ii. New deed to Property 
 iii. Bill of Sale or Transfer 
 iv. Copy of current Tax Bill 
 v. New IRS Form W-9 
 vi.  Completed and Signed AT&T Payment Direction Form 
 vii. Full contact information for new Landlord including phone number(s) 
 
(c) Landlord agrees not to sell, lease or use any areas of the Property or surrounding Property 

for the installation, operation or maintenance of other wireless communications facilities if such installation, 
operation or maintenance would interfere with Tenant’s Permitted Use or communications equipment as 
determined by radio propagation tests performed by Tenant in its sole discretion.  Landlord or Landlord’s 
prospective purchaser shall reimburse Tenant for any costs and expenses of such testing.  If the radio 
frequency propagation tests demonstrate levels of interference unacceptable to Tenant, Landlord shall be 
prohibited from selling, leasing or using any areas of the Property or the surrounding Property for purposes 
of any installation, operation or maintenance of any other wireless communications facility or equipment. 



3 

(d) The provisions of this paragraph shall in no way limit or impair the obligations of Landlord 
under the Agreement, including interference and access obligations.”  

 
 
 
AT&T values its affiliation with you and hopes to continue a long and mutually profitable relationship for 
years to come. Participation in this program is optional and AT&T will continue to abide by the terms of the 
existing agreement, including AT&T’s rights to not extend the existing lease agreement. After having 
reviewed this proposal, please contact me prior to July 21, 2023. Thank you for your consideration. 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 

Marvin Robertson 

Lease Consultant 

d: (469) 640-4805   
a: 10590 West Ocean Air Drive, Suite 300 
  San Diego, CA 92130 
e: MRobertson@md7.com 
 

 
Authorized Agent for AT&T Mobility 
cc: Gregory D. Ohmer 
 Director-Network Planning, AT&T Mobility 

 
 
 
Submission of this letter does not constitute a modified agreement and is only a proposal.  The parties acknowledge 
and agree that they intend to be bound only upon the execution of an amendment detailing the provisions herein. 
 



City of Allegan 
City Manager’s Office 

269.673.5511 
231 Trowbridge Street 

Allegan, MI 49010 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Allegan City Council 
FROM:  Joel Dye, City Manager 
REVIEWED BY: N/A 
DATE:   August 14, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Request to approve the construction of six dumpster enclosures in 

Downtown Allegan. 
 
Action Requested:  
It is requested that the City Council approve city staff to contract with Robert Galloway in an 
amount not to exceed $37,000 for the construction of six dumpster enclosures in Downtown 
Allegan per the attached estimate.   
 
Background:  
Over the past several years the city has explored ways to clean up the process to handle trash in 
Downtown Allegan. Through this process we have created a system to raise funds to pay for trash 
and recycling pick up under a single contract at six specific city-controlled sites in Downtown 
Allegan.  It is intended that this system will begin in January of 2024.   
 
In 2022 the city issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) to construct five dumpster enclosures in 
Downtown Allegan. No firms responded to that RFP. Following that failed RFP, staff reached out 
directly to Straight Line Fencing out of Grand Rapids to get an estimate to construct five 
enclosures; their estimate was $59,268 to construct five dumpster enclosures. After receiving that 
estimate, and six months later, staff engaged in discussions with Robert Galloway regarding 
constructing the dumpster enclosures since he most recently constructed the enclosure behind the 
Griswold Auditorium for the City of Allegan. Through this discussion with Robert Galloway as 
well as with downtown businesses, we have decided we needed six dumpster enclosures and we 
could make them with metal siding, like the ones behind Schaendorf’s Brewing Company.   
 
Through Section 2-237 Purchasing Regulations of the City’s Code of Ordinances for Professional 
Services, specifically Design Build Professionals, staff worked with Robert Galloway to develop 
an estimate of not to exceed $37,000 to construct six dumpster enclosures. Please see the attached 
estimate from Robert Galloway.   
 
Attachment(s):  
Straight Line Fencing Estimate 
Robert Galloway Estimate 
Example of the proposed metal siding 
 



 
          

 

 

             PHONE:  616-443-2550 

                                   FAX:  616-608-5521 

                   845 CHESTNUT ST SW 

     GRAND RAPIDS, MI  49503                  

    STRAIGHTLINEFENCES.COM 

  

  

 

 

May 3, 2022 

 

To:  Joel Dye / City of Allegan 

From:  Joel Vergouwe / Straight Line Fence  

Re:  Dumpster Enclosures 

 

 

6’ Tall Composite Dumpster Enclosures– Price - $59,268.00 

• Furnish and install five 20’ x 17’ composite dumpster enclosures 

• Five 20’ double drive gates with commercial 180 degree hinges, dumpster latch, and drop 

rod on each gate leaf 

• One 14’ x 12’ and 8’ x 18’ double enclosure around electrical and dumpster enclosure on 

the river front 

• One 14’ double gate with commercial 180 degree hinges, dumpster latch, and drop rod on 

each gate leaf 

• One walk gate in each enclosure 

• 4” galvanized gate posts, 3” galvanized terminal posts, 2 ½” galvanized line posts, treated 

2x4 rails, trex 1x6 composite boards 

• All gates will have galvanized frames with composite boards  

• All posts will be set in concrete 

• Removal and disposal of existing enclosures is included 

 

 

__________________________________________ ________________________ 

Approval Signature       Date 

__________________________________________ ________________________ 

Printed Name       PO Number  

 

- Not included are bonds, permits, prevailing wage, staking or layout, clearing, grading, core 

drilling, etc. 

- Payment terms:  Net 30 

- Because of unstable material prices, we can hold this price for 10 days. 

Straight Line Fence is not responsible for unmarked utilities including sprinkler lines 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to quote this work.  If you have any questions, please contact me 

at 616-443-2550 or by email joel@straightlinefences.com.  

mailto:joel@straightlinefences.com


ROBERT GALLOWAY 

232 LOWE STREET 

ALLEGAN, MI 49010 

(269) 673-7003 

bobandtjgalloway@yahoo.com 
 

E   S   T   I   M   A   T   E 
 

To:  City of Allegan                                            Date: August 10, 2023 
 
Dumpster Enclosures: 
  
 2023  3 enclosures @ 9' x 24' x 9'   6' high 
   1 enclosure  @ 9" x 12' x 9'   6' high 

            1 enclosure 2 sides 9' deep   6' high 
    (using wall for the back) 
 
2024  1 enclosure @ 9' x 24' x 9'    6' high 
 

All will be black steel w/white J-channel 
Treated post - gavel mix in ground 
 Gate post 6"x6"x10' 
 Line post 4"x6"x8' 
Treated 2 x 4 
City will provide needed machinery 
 

    TOTAL ESTIMATE NOT TO EXCEED $37,000.00 
 

THANK YOU 
 

TERMS: 50% DUE UPON APPROVAL OF ESTIMATE 

      BALANCE DUE UPON COMPLETION 
 

Liability certificate will be provided upon approval. 

Any changes in design may result in price changes. 




	4A - 8/14/2023 Agenda
	5A - 7/24/2023 Regular Meeting Minutes
	8A - 128 Locust St OPRA Public Hearing and Approval
	Dewey Family Properties LLC OPRA Application
	Proposed Building Plans
	Statement of Obsolescence from Assessor
	City of Allegan OPRA Policy
	Resolution 23.25

	11A.1 - 8/7/2023 Airport Advisory Board Minutes
	11A.2 - 8/7/2023 Historic District Commission Minutes
	11A.3 - Downtown Development Authority Minutes
	11B.1 - Accounts Payable and Payroll
	Report

	11D.1 - Purchase Order for System Specialties - Diverting and Isolation Valves
	System Specialties Quote
	Kennedy Industries Quote
	Purchase Order
	Picture of Red Valve
	Picture of Rotork Valve
	Picture of Diverting Lines to EQ Basin and Basin 3

	11D.2 - Purchase Order for Kennedy Industries - Replacement Parts for JWC Septage Honey Monster
	JWC Environmental Quote
	Purchase Order
	Picture of Septage Screen and Auger

	11D.3 - Emergency Work Payment for Eastern Avenue Lift Station
	Picture of Damaged Force Main
	Picture of Repaired Force Main
	Picture of Emergency Repair Work Site
	Waste Recovery Systems Invoice

	11F.1 - Updated AT&T Cellular Lease Agreement Terms
	Updated Lease Terms

	11F.2 - Construction of Dumpster Enclosures in Downtown Allegan
	Straight Line Fences Estimate
	Robert Galloway Estimate
	Example of Proposed Metal Siding Fence




